
1 | P a g e  
 

 

                                          VILLAGE BOARD AGENDA  

   Monday, March 2, 2026 at 5:00pm 
Rick J. Hermus Council Chambers 

515 W. Kimberly Ave. 
Kimberly, WI 54136  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Moment of Silent Reflection, Pledge of Allegiance 

4. President’s Remarks  

5. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
a. February 23, 2026 Village Board 
b. February 27, 2026 Village Board Special Meeting 

 
6. Unfinished Business for Consideration or Action 

a. None 

 

7. New Business for Consideration or Action 
a. Award Bid for Purchase of a ½ ton pickup truck 

b. Award Bid for Purchase of a 1-ton pickup truck with additional bid on Snow Equipment 

c. Updates to Infrastructure Standards and Special Assessment Policy 

 

8. Public Participation 

9. Closed Session 
The village board will meet pursuant to State Statute 19.85(1)(e) to conduct specific public business 
in which competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session related to properties located in 
TID No. 6.  

The board may reconvene into open session pursuant to section 19.85(2) of the Wisconsin Statutes 
for possible action on the closed session matters.   
 

10. Action on Closed Session matters (if any) 

11. Adjournment 

 

 



2 | P a g e  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Any person wishing to attend the meeting who because of their disability is unable to attend, is requested to 
contact the ADA Coordinator at 920-788-7500 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting so that reasonable 

accommodation may be made. 

Village Board Meeting- Virtual Attendance Info 

March 2, 2026 at 5:00pm 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 

https://meet.goto.com/585065341 

You can also dial in using your phone. 

Access Code: 585-065-341 

United States (Toll Free): 1 877 309 2073 

https://meet.goto.com/585065341


VILLAGE OF KIMBERLY     
BOARD MEETING MINUTES     
02/23/2026     
     
A meeting of the Kimberly Village Board was called to order on Monday, February 23, 2026 at 
5:00pm in the Rick J. Hermus Council Chambers, 515 W. Kimberly Ave by President Chuck 
Kuen.     
 
Board Present: President Chuck Kuen, Trustees Tom Gaffney, Mike Hruzek, Dave Hietpas 

Norb Karner, Lee Hammen, and Marcia Trentlage 
Board Excused: None 
Staff Present: Clerk-Treasurer Jennifer Weyenberg, Administrator/Director of Public Works 

Danielle Block, and Community Development Director Sam Schroeder 
Others Present: Judy Hebbe of the Times Villager and Engineer Brad Werner of McMahon 
   
President’s Remarks    
Last week we were able to secure a $4.1 million dollar grant for the reconstruction on Kennedy 
Ave in conjunction with East Central Wisconsin Planning Commission and the Metropolitan Policy 
Organization.  The reconstruction is slated to take place in 2030 but hoping to move it up sooner if 
possible. Administrator Block also noted that this grant is 80% of the overall project cost.    
 
Approval of Minutes from the 02-16-2026 Meeting     
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Gaffney seconded the motion to approve with an amendment. 
Motion carried by unanimous vote of the board. 
 
Correspondence from Staff or Board  
Administrator Block’s memo on Village Board Email Addresses  
Administrator Block explained that each Village Board member has been given a corresponding 
contact email address to use for Village matters and will begin using them immediately.   
 
Unfinished Business     
Discuss Amendments to Chapter 308 Intoxicating Liquor and Fermented Malt Beverages  
There was discussion on recommendations for amendments to Section 308 of the Village of 
Kimberly Ordinance.  No decision was made and further discussions will continue at a later 
meeting date. 
 
New Business  
Site & Architectural Review- 571 Marcella St 
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Karner seconded the motion to approve the Site 
Review Plan for 571 Marcella Street as it relates to the addition of a secured outdoor 
storage/impound lot in the rear of the property with the following conditions: 
1. The fence including any screening shall be maintained and properly secured at all times. 
2. The outdoor storage/impound lot shall not be used or converted into a junk yard/salvage yard. 
3. Any dumpster or refuse containers shall be screened within the fenced area or an additional 
enclosure shall be provided. 
ADDED CONDITION FROM THE PLAN COMMISSION AND FIRE DEPARTMENT 



2 

 

4. The fence shall be fully screened from off-site view with a mesh fabric fence. 
5. The Fire Department shall be permitted to inspect the enclosed area for compliance upon a 
reasonable request. 
Motion carried by unanimous vote of the board.  
 

Change Order #2 in the amount of $65,398.22 for the Marcella St. Trail project 
Trustee Trentlage moved, Trustee Hammen seconded the motion to approve.  Motion carried by 
unanimous vote of the board.  
  
Certificate for Payment #3 (FINAL) to Vinton Construction Co. in the amount of $200,112.96 
for the Marcella St. Trail project  
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Trentlage seconded the motion to approve. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote of the board. 
 
Award Bid for the 2026 Green Dot Sidewalk Program  
Trustee Karner moved, Trustee Trentlage seconded the motion to award the bid to Beardsley 
Concrete LLC in the amount of $33,437.00 for the 2026 Greed Dot Sidewalk Program.  Motion 
carried by unanimous vote of the board.   
  
Public Participation 
None 
 
Adjournment     
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Gaffney seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote of the board at 5:39pm.          

 
 
__________________________________ 
Jennifer Weyenberg 
Village Clerk-Treasurer 

 
Dated 02/24/26   
Drafted by: ELZ   
Approved by Village Board:________________      



VILLAGE OF KIMBERLY     
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES     
02/27/2026     
     
A special meeting of the Kimberly Village Board was called to order on Friday, February 27, 2026 at 
9:00am in the Rick J. Hermus Council Chambers, 515 W. Kimberly Ave by President Chuck 
Kuen.     
 
Board Present: President Chuck Kuen, Trustees Tom Gaffney, Dave Hietpas Norb Karner, 

Lee Hammen, and Marcia Trentlage 
Board Excused: Trustee Mike Hruzek 
Staff Present: Clerk-Treasurer Jennifer Weyenberg, Administrator/Director of Public Works 

Danielle Block, and Community Development Director Sam Schroeder 
Others Present: None 
   
 
Closed Session 
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Trentlage seconded the motion to enter closed session 
pursuant to State Statute 19.85(1)(e) to conduct specific public business in which competitive or 
bargaining reasons required a closed session related to properties located in TID No. 6.  Motion 
carried by unanimous vote of the board at 9:01am. 
 
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Karner seconded the motion to reconvene into open session at 
9:23am pursuant to section 19.85(2) of the State Statute for action on closed session matters.  
Motion carried by unanimous vote of the board.   
 
Action on Closed Session matters  
Trustee Hietpas moved, Trustee Gaffney seconded the motion to approve the first amendment to 
the Amended Tax Increment District 6 Development Agreement contingent upon review and 
acceptance from Village Attorney Koehler.  Motion carried by unanimous vote of the board. 
 
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Karner seconded the motion to approve the sale prices of 10 
lots. Motion carried by unanimous vote of the board.  
 
Adjournment     
Trustee Hammen moved, Trustee Trentlage seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote of the board at 9:24am.          

 
 
__________________________________ 
Jennifer Weyenberg 
Village Clerk-Treasurer 

 
Dated 02/27/26   
Drafted by: ELZ   
Approved by Village Board:________________      



Village of Kimberly 
REQUEST FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Purchase of a 1/2 Ton Pickup Truck, Replace #81, SE-26-01 

REPORT PREPARED BY: Anna Huber, Deputy Director DPW; Shaun Brill, Equipment 
Mechanic 

REPORT DATE: March 2, 2026 

ADMINISTRATOR'S REVIEW / COMMENTS: 

No additional comments to this report 

See additional comments attached 

EXPLANATION: 

As part of the approved 2026 CIP, the Village recently solicited bids for the purchase of a new ½ 
Ton Pickup Truck. Two proposals were received: Gustman Chevrolet – $39,438 and Les Stumpf 
Ford – $35,618

After reviewing both submissions, Gustman Chevrolet was the only bidder that fully met the 
Village’s specifications.

The proposal from Les Stumpf Ford did not meet several key requirements. Specifically, the 
vehicle did not match the Village’s standardized fleet color, did not include factory-installed 
upfitter switches (which would require additional installation by Village staff), and was equipped 
with a different tire size than our current fleet.

Standardizing fleet specification, particularly tire size, allows Public Works to maintain a single 
inventory item, reducing overhead costs, simplifying maintenance, and minimizing vehicle 
downtime. This CIP Project (SE-26-01) budgeted $45,000 from the Street Equipment Trust 
Fund. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the purchase of a 2025 1/2 ton pickup truck in the 
amount of $39,438 funded by the Street Equipment Trust Fund. 



Village of Kimberly 
REQUEST FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Purchase of a 1 Ton Pickup Dump/Plow Truck, Replace #3 
SE-26-02 
REPORT PREPARED BY: Anna Huber, Deputy Director DPW; Shaun Brill, Equipment 
Mechanic 

REPORT DATE: March 2, 2026 

ADMINISTRATOR'S REVIEW / COMMENTS: 

No additional comments to this report 

See additional comments attached 

EXPLANATION: 

As part of the approved 2026 Capital Improvement Plan, the Village solicited bids for the 
purchase of a new One Ton Pickup Truck. Two proposals were received: Gustman Chevrolet 
– $49,821 and Les Stumpf Ford – $53,806.95

Staff recommends awarding the truck purchase to Gustman Chevrolet, as the vehicle met all 
Village specifications and was the lower-cost proposal.

Additionally, three bids were received for the snow equipment to be installed on Unit #3: 
Truck Equipment – $89,050
Caspers – $85,094
Monroe Truck – $75,117

The proposal from Monroe Truck was the only bid that fully met the Village’s specifications and 
was also the lowest cost submission. Staff therefore recommends awarding the snow 
equipment contract to Monroe Truck in the amount of $75,117.

This CIP Project (SE-26-02) budgeted $120,500 from the Street Equipment Trust Fund. With the 
recognized savings from SE-26-01 we are under budget.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the purchase of a 2025 1-ton pickup truck and snow 
equipment in the amount of $124,938 funded by the Street Equipment Trust Fund. 



 
Village of Kimberly 

REQUEST FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION 
 
 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Updates to Infrastructure Standards and Special Assessment 
Policy 
REPORT PREPARED BY:     Dani Block, Administrator/DPW 
REPORT DATE:  March 2, 2026 

ADMINISTRATOR'S REVIEW  /  COMMENTS: 
 
     No additional comments to this report   _________________________ 
 
     See additional comments attached  _____________________________ 
 
EXPLANATION:     
 
Staff requests approval of the latest updates to the Infrastructure Standards and Special 
Assessment Policy.  The following updates have been made and are reflected in the attached 
document through tracked changes: 

1. Updated the language of storm and sanitary laterals to be completed as part of the 
Village’s infrastructure  projects.  In the past, the Village has allowed the homeowner to 
utilize the Village’s contractor OR self-perform/hire their own.  The update is being 
proposed to ensure that the mini-storm/storm/sanitary connections are made with the 
project.  This is in line with the Village’s Clear Water Ordinance and eliminates the need to 
enforce non-compliance after the project is complete. 

2. Updated Director of Operations to Director of Public Works. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the updates to the Infrastructure Standards and Special 
Assessment Policy. 

 



Infrastructure Standards &  

Special Assessment Policy 

 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2 
 August 30, 2021 v3 
 February 19, 2024 v4March 2, 2026 v5 
     

 
 

1. Purpose.  The purpose of this policy is to document the special assessment 
policies for infrastructure installation and replacement.  The historical policies have 
been modified based on the establishment of the Transportation Utility in 2020. 
 
Special assessments are charges levied by local governments against real property to 
defray the costs of public work or improvements which benefit such property.  Special 
assessments are flexible.  They can be used to pay for street construction, curb and 
gutter, storm and sanitary sewer improvements, water mains and facilities, tree 
removal, park land condemnation and many other public improvements.  Because only 
those properties which specially benefit from the improvement bear the cost of the 
improvement, the general property tax is not burdened. 
 
2. Objectives.    The objectives of the Village’s special assessment policy are: 

(a) To ensure that special assessments are levied consistently across the 
Village; 

(b) To provide additional guidance on the implementation of Village 
Ordinance Chapter 50 Article II Special Assessments and Charges; 

(c) To provide standardized guidance for use by all Village departments in 
accordance with Village Ordinance Chapter 430 Street and Sidewalks; 

(d) To account for the creation and implementation of the Transportation 
Utility. 

 
3. Application.    This policy applies to special assessments imposed by the Village 
of Kimberly after the effective date of this policy.  Special assessments are imposed by 
the Village according to Municipal Code Chapter 50, Article II Special Assessments and 
Charges.   A diagram reference of the Typical Assessments can be found in Exhibit A. 
 
4. Billing.    The billing of special assessments will be sent at the conclusion of the 
project.  Currently the following payment options are approved by the Village Board: 

 Payment in Full prior to November 1st of the billing year with no interest 
charge. 

 



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

 5 or 10 Year Payment Plans:  Equal amounts to be paid with tax bills for the 
number of years chosen with interest charged on the unpaid balance.  No 
installment shall be less than $100 annually.  The interest rate is set on the 
date of the Special Assessment Public Hearing at prime plus 1%.  Prepayment 
can be made at any time without penalty. 

 Payment of the special assessment in full is due prior to the conclusion of a 
payment plan in the following circumstances: 

o refinance of the subject property; or 
o sale of the subject property. 

 
5. Utility Portion of Infrastructure Improvements.  As a method to reduce 
assessments, the participating utilities on a project (both new and reconstruction) will 
be assigned a portion of the roadway construction and restoration costs.  Only utilities 
participating in the project will be assigned costs as outlined below: 

(a) Sanitary Sewer = 24.2% Assignment (typical) 
(b) Storm Water = 15.2% Assignment (typical) 
(c) Water = 18.2% (typical) 

 
The assignment of roadway construction and restorations costs will be done by the 
Village Engineer and presented in the Engineer’s Report.  This information will illustrate 
the reduction in roadway construction assessment rates to the property owners and/or 
charge to the Transportation Utility. 

 
6. Street Reconstruction.  Roadway reconstruction special assessments are 
eliminated. 

 
7. New Street Construction.  Assessed at 100%, no change to the historic policy.  
This includes new streets, streets that currently exist in asphalt and any future street 
that is annexed to the Village of Kimberly. 

7.1. Assessment will be levied according to the total front foot dimension of a 
property abutting the right-of-way. 

7.2. Corner lot credit shall apply, ½ of the long side, with a maximum of 60-
feet will be given. 

7.3. The standard residential street will be 33-feet wide, back-of-curb to back-
of curb. 

7.4. The Village will assume the cost of any new street width greater than 33-
feet. 



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

7.5. The Village will assume the cost of any pavement depth over the standard 
6-inch residential requirement. 

7.6. The standard residential, commercial or industrial street will be concrete.  
Concrete street depths will be: 

Residential: 6-inch concrete over 6-inches of basecourse (WisDOT 
1 ¼” base aggregate dense) 
Truck Route: 8-inch concrete over 6-inches of basecourse 
(WisDOT 1 ¼” base aggregate dense) 

7.7. The Village will assume the cost of the intersection, based on front foot 
basis. 

 
8. Driveway Aprons.  Assessed at 100%, no change to the historic policy.  All 
existing driveway aprons within the street right-of-way shall be constructed in concrete 
as part of the roadway project and in accordance with Village ordinance.  The price of 
the apron shall be part of the contract. 
 
9. Sidewalk Reconstruction.  Sidewalk reconstruction assessments are eliminated, 
except when the damage is caused by property owner or occupants actions. 
 
10. New Sidewalk Construction.  New sidewalks will be assessed at 100% to the 
property owner. 
 
11. Storm Sewer Mains.  A storm sewer main is part of the overall storm sewer 
system to convey surface runoff of clear water.  This drainage system handles runoff 
from storm events and is part of a larger storm water management plan within the 
Village.  Storm sewer mains collect water from mini storms and catch basins.  The water 
is then discharged into the storm water management system, likely to a storm water 
pond. 

 
Storm sewer mains within the Village varies from 12-inch to 48-inches and are typically 
located under public roadways.  Storm sewer mains are installed, owned and operated 
by the Village Storm Water Utility.   The cost of the storm sewer main is 100% paid for 
by the Storm Water Utility. 
 
In newer subdivisions, a storm sewer serves as a collection system not only for surface 
runoff from the land and streets, but also as a system to collect sump pump discharge 
and a limited number of roof drains from private properties to the lateral installed to 
each individual property.  In these areas, a mini storm sewer system is not present.  



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

Therefore, allowable connections in these areas include sump pump and one roof drain 
or downspout. 
 
The following are examples of systems that shall not be connected to the storm system.  
These include, but are not limited to: 

 Rear or front yard surface drains; 

 Greater than one roof drain; 

 French drains; 

 Drain tile; and 

 Any other connection for the purpose of draining a property other than the 
discharge of a sump pump. 

 
12. Mini Storm Sewer.  The Village’s mini storm sewer policy was adopted March 15, 
1993, and is further clarified hereafter.  A mini storm sewer is a storm sewer system that 
is located on Village property, usually under the terrace area in the older sections of the 
Village.  In these sections of the Village, the storm sewer was only designed to collect 
surface runoff from the land and streets.  There are laterals off the mini storm main 
sewer to each property on the street.  The property owner is required to connect their 
private sump pump discharge from the home to the mini storm lateral. 
 
The mini storm lateral is provided for several reasons: 

a) To help prevent puddling and ponding of sump pump discharge water in yards; 
b) To prevent sump pump water from flowing across sidewalks and freezing in 

winter months; 
c) To meet Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) and Heart of the 

Valley Metropolitan Sewerage District (HOVMSD) requirements to alleviate clear 
water that finds its way into sanitary sewers.   

 
Rainwater continually adds to the groundwater that is present around all home 
basements.  The more groundwater present, the higher the hydrostatic pressure of this 
groundwater, thus more clear water forced into sanitary sewers – costing the 
community more money on treatment of wastewater.  The more clear water kept out of 
sanitary sewer systems, the more saved on sanitary sewer treatment fees.  Additionally, 
clear water increases the volume of sewage to be treated, which strains capacity at the 
wastewater treatment plant. 
 
Properties without sump pumps will still be required to install a lateral stub to the 
property.  During a project, it is easier and more cost efficient to install the lateral to 



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

every property regardless of sump pump status.  The special assessments for these 
specific installations may be deferred until the home is sold or the property owner 
connects to the lateral.  These deferred special assessments are not subject to payment 
in full due to refinancing the property. 
 
Only sump pumps can be connected to the mini-storm lateral.  The mini-storm system 
has been designed to collect the limited, clean water coming from a known source 
(sump pump).  The following are examples of systems that shall not be connected to the 
mini-storm system.  These include, but are not limited to: 

 Rear or front yard surface drains; 

 Roof drains; 

 French drains; 

 Drain tile; and 

 Any other connection for the purpose of draining a property other than the 
discharge of a sump pump. 

 
PENALTY:  On or after January 1, 1999 roof drains and any other connection for the 
purpose of draining a property other than the discharge of a sump pump will not be 
allowed to drain into the Village of Kimberly mini-storm sewer system.  First offense – 
notice to disconnect within 48 hours.  Second offense – Forfeiture of $500.00 shall be 
assessed at the expiration of said 48 hours. 
Roof drains connected to the Village’s mini storm sewer system prior to January 1, 1999 
will be grandfathered and allowed to remain in the system. 
 

12.1. Existing Mini Storm Connections to Village Storm Sewer System.   
 
General.  Property owners who have previously connected to the Village 
storm sewer system in the back of a catch basin or inlet or directly into a 
manhole prior to a Village storm sewer system being available will be 
required to remove that existing connection and connect to the newly 
installed lateral when it is supplied by the Village. 
 
Installation.  The Village will install a mini storm lateral to a point one-foot 
beyond the property line as part of the mini storm sewer or street 
reconstruction project.  The lateral shall be four-inches in diameter and at 
a depth dependent on the available depth of the existing storm sewer.  
The Village will attempt to locate the lateral for the property owner with 
the intent being the shortest distance to the existing discharge point at 



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

the time of construction.  Property owners may request a change in 
location by contacting the Director of OperationsDirector of Public Works 
prior to the construction of the lateral. 
 
Cost.  The Village will be responsible for the cost of the new connection if 
the existing connection is operating as intended.  The Village will waive 
this assessment to the property owner. 
 

12.2. Mini Storm as Part of a Street Reconstruction Project.   
 
General.  Prior to street reconstruction, if a storm sewer main is available, 
storm sewer laterals will be installed to each property on the project.  
These laterals will be installed one-foot beyond the property line to all 
adjacent property owners.  The laterals shall be four-inch diameter and at 
a depth dependent on the available depth of the existing storm sewer.  
The Village will attempt to locate the lateral for the property owner with 
the intent being the shortest distance to the existing sump pump 
discharge point at the time of construction.  Property owners may 
request a change in the location by contacting the Director of 
OperationsDirector of Public Works prior to construction of the storm 
lateral.  If main line storm sewer is not available, mini storm sewer will be 
installed and assessed to the property owner. 
 
Installation.  The property owner shall be responsible to permanently 
connect the sump pump discharge to the storm lateral that was installed 
to the property.  The connection shall be made by the Village’s contractor 
during the mini storm sewer or street reconstruction project.  The 
connection shall be within 90 days after the mini storm sewer or street 
reconstruction project is complete.  All connections shall employ an air 
gap or air break connection, See Exhibit B Mini Storm Connection. 
 
Cost.  The property owner shall be assessed for all costs associated with 
the installation of the storm lateral to one-foot beyond the property line.  
The cost shall be included on the Engineer’s Report for the Street 
Reconstruction Project and shall be assessed at 70% of the cost to the 
property owner and 30% of the cost to the Village.  A property owner will 
only be assessed for one side of a corner lot; that side being the first side 
service with any project or the most appropriate side for their sump 



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

pump connection.  All costs associated with connecting to the storm 
lateral on the private side shall be assessed at 100%. 
 

12.3. Village Wide Mini Storm Sewer Plan.   
 
General.  The Village Board has compiled a mini storm sewer plan which 
established the proposed mini storm sewer projects.  The Village Board 
established the plan on a priority basis, based upon input from the 
Director of OperationsDirector of Public Works and the Village Engineer.  
The plan is flexible and updated periodically to reflect the needs of the 
Village. 
 
Installation.  Mini storm sewer shall be installed in the Village right-of-
way and shall be maintained by the Village.  The exact location of the mini 
storm sewer may vary from project to project and shall be determined by 
the Village Board on a case-by-case basis.  Laterals shall be four-inch 
diameter and at a depth dependent on the available depth of the existing 
storm sewer.  The Village will attempt to locate the lateral for the 
property owner with the intent of being the shortest distance to the 
existing discharge point at the time of construction.  Property owners 
may request a change in the location by contacting the Director of 
OperationsDirector of Public Works prior to construction of the storm 
lateral. 
 
The property owner shall be responsible to connect his/her sump pump 
discharge to the storm lateral that was installed to the property.  The 
connection shall be within 90 days after the mini-storm sewer project is 
completed. 
 
Cost.  The property owner shall be assessed for all costs associated with 
the installation of the mini storm sewer and lateral service on a front foot 
basis.  The assessment shall be assessed 70% to the property owner and 
30% to the Village.  A property owner will only be assessed for one side of 
a corner lot; that being the first side serviced with any project.  All costs 
associated with connecting to the storm lateral on the private side shall 
be assessed at 100%. 
 

12.4. Private Property Owner Mini Storm Sewer Requests.   



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

 
General.  A property owner or group of property owners may request the 
installation of mini storm sewer if it does not appear on the plan.  The 
property owners may have their own mini storm sewer installed on 
private property and/or in Village right-of-way upon approval of the 
Director of OperationsPublic Works Director. 
 
A plan of the proposed construction shall be submitted to the Director of 
OperationsPublic Works Director for approval.  Approval will be based 
upon the Plan’s conformance with mini storm plans for the area and 
other engineering considerations.  The plans must be approved by the 
Director of OperationsPublic Works Director and the Village Engineer. 
 
A qualified contractor shall perform the work and shall be approved by 
the Director of OperationsDirector of Public Works.  The contractor shall 
obtain all insurance and bonding required by the Village prior to any 
construction that involved Village storm sewers, inlets, manholes or work 
in the right-of-way. 
 
Installation.  All construction of mini storm sewers shall conform to all 
applicable Village ordinances and construction standards.  This 
information may be obtained from the Director of OperationsDirector of 
Public Works.  Prior to the connection to the Village storm sewer system, 
the mini storm shall be inspected and approved by the Village.  No 
connection to the Village storm sewer shall be allowed until the 
installation has been formally accepted. 
 
Cost.  The costs associated with the entire project will be assessed 100% 
to the property owners. 
 

 
13. Sanitary Sewer Mains.  A sanitary sewer main is a pipe that receives wastewater 
from private laterals (residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants and 
institutions).  The mains are part of an overall waste water collection system.  The 
wastewater is conveyed to the Heart of the Valley Metropolitan Sewerage District 
(HOVMSD) for treatment. 

 



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

Sanitary sewer mains within the Village vary from 8-inches to 30-inches in diameter and 
are located within public right-of-ways and easements.  Sanitary sewer mains are 
installed, owned and operated by the Village Sanitary Sewer Utility.   The cost of the 
sanitary sewer main construction and relay is 100% paid for by the Sanitary Sewer 
Utility. 
 
14. Sanitary Sewer Laterals.  A sanitary sewer lateral is a pipe that carries 
wastewater directly from residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants and 
institutions to the sanitary sewer main.  From there, the wastewater is conveyed to 
HOVMSD for treatment. 
 
Sanitary sewer laterals are typically 4 to 6-inches in diameter and installed from the 
sanitary sewer main to the property.  The portion of the sanitary sewer lateral from the 
main to the right-of-way line is installed by the Village and owned by the resident.  The 
portion of the sanitary sewer lateral from the right-of-way line to the building is 
installed by the resident and owned by the resident.  The entire lateral from the 
property to the main with associated maintenance is the responsibility of the resident. 
 
No authorized person shall uncover, make any connection with or opening into, use, 
alter or disturb the sanitary sewer without first obtaining a written permit from the 
Director of OperationsDirector of Public Works. 
 

14.1. Methods and Materials.  The size, slope, alignment, materials or 
construction of a building sewer and the methods to be used in the 
excavation, placing the pipe, jointing, testing and backfilling the trench 
shall all conform to the requirements of the building and plumbing code 
or other applicable rules and regulations of the Village of Kimberly. 

 
14.2. Use of Old Building Sewers.  Old building sewers and laterals may be 

used in connection with new buildings only when they are found, on 
examination and tested by the Municipal Approving Authority, to meet 
all requirement set forth by the Village of Kimberly.  The cost associated 
with the televising and pressure testing shall be the responsibility of the 
property owner. 

 
14.3. New Development Installation.  In all new development, it shall be the 

responsibility of the developer to provide sanitary service to each lot 
with a minimum of a 4-inch diameter sanitary lateral constructed to a 



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

point 1-foot beyond the property line connected to a sanitary sewer 
main by use of an in-line wye.  Connections to manholes will not be 
allowed. 

 
It shall be the responsibility of the property owner to connect their lateral 
to the sanitary service lateral installed.  The connection shall be made in 
the presence of the Building Inspector. 
 
The cost associated with the installation of the sanitary lateral to a point 
– 1 foot beyond the property line shall be the responsibility of the 
developer.  The cost associated with the installation of the sanitary lateral 
from 1-foot beyond the property line to the building shall be the 
responsibility of the property owner.   

 
15. Existing Sanitary Sewer Connections, Relays and Lining.  During the relay or 
lining of a sanitary sewer main, the Village will be responsible for the relay or lining of 
the main sewer line and the relay or lining of the sanitary sewer lateral connection (from 
the sewer main to the property line).  This methodology may change based on future 
technology.   
 
During a relay or lining project the Village will televise as needed all private laterals on 
the project prior to construction.  If the lateral from the right-of-way to the building is 
not of present day materials, such as Schedule-40 PVC or Schedule-17 Polyethylene or 
has any evidence of some type of failure, (disconnected joints, deteriorated pipe, illegal 
connections or any other obstructions) the Village will require the property owner to 
replace the sanitary lateral from the right-of-way to the building. 
 
If during this televising, the lateral is determined to be in violation of the Village of 
Kimberly Clear Water Ordinance, it is mandatory that the property owner take whatever 
action is necessary to come into compliance regarding clear water entering the sanitary 
sewer system and eliminate the illegal discharge of clear water into the sanitary sewer 
system.  Due to the possible unknown installation of the underground cross connection, 
the property owner will not be issued a citation for violation of this ordinance; unless it 
can be proven the cross connection was deliberately installed by the current property 
owner for the purpose of illicit discharge of clear water.  Regardless of the nature, all 
costs associated with this sanitary sewer lateral replacement shall be the sole 
responsibility of the property owner.   
 



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

When a sanitary sewer main is reconstructed, property owners may be required to 
replace or improve the sanitary sewer lateral at their own cost.  In these cases, the 
Village will coordinate its contractor to perform this work.  The owner has the option to 
use the Village’s contractor or may employ a contractor of their choice.  Costs when 
employing the Village’s contractor are eligible for billing as described in Section 4.  Costs 
when employing other than the Village’s contractor are not eligible for use of the Village 
financing options. 
 
The cost of the relay or lining of the sewer main and lateral shall be shared by the 
property owner and the Village, with the property owner paying the sanitary lateral 
portion from the main sewer line, including the pipe connection to the right-of-way.  
From the right-of-way to the building is the responsibility of the property owner.  For 
the purpose of assessment, the main sewer line is always assumed to be in the center of 
the street right-of-way making it fair and equitable to each property owner on either 
side of the street. 
 
16. Water Main and Laterals.  Water is supplied to property owners by the Village of 
Kimberly Water Utility.  All properties receiving a water supply from the Village of 
Kimberly Water Utility are bound by the rules and regulations on file with the Public 
Service Commission (PSC) of Wisconsin. 
 
Water main replacements are not assessed, it is the responsibility of the Water Utility 
per the Public Service Commission (PSC) regulations. Water laterals from the curb stop 
to the home/building are assessed at 100% to the property owner.  Private ownership of 
the water lateral is defined by the PSC as the portion of the water lateral from the curb 
stop to the home. 
 
Per Village ordinance, a privately-owned portion of a lead water service line shall be 
replaced with an approved material whenever any of the following occurs: 

 A leak or failure has been discovered on either the privately owned or utility-
owned portion of the service line. 

 The utility-owned portion of the line is replaced on either a planned or 
emergency basis. 

 
 



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

Exhibit A: Typical Assessment Diagram 



!!2!!2

!(

!

!!2

:
:

:
:

:
:

:
:

Residence

Driveway

5' Sidewalk

5' Sidewalk

Terrace

TerraceApron

Typical Street

Lo
t L

ine

Lo
t L

ine

Mi
ni 

St
or

m 
La

ter
al

Wa
ter

 La
ter

al
Sa

nit
ary

 La
ter

al
St

or
m 

La
ter

al

8" Sanitary Sewer

12"- 48" Storm Sewer

8" Watermain

6" Mini Storm

5'
5'

8.5
'

8.5
'

33
' B

-B

60
' R

OW

VILLAGE OF KIMBERLY
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

TYPICAL ASSESSMENT

n:
\G

IS
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

K
00

01
_V

ill
ag

e_
Ki

m
be

rly
\T

yp
ic

al
_S

tre
et

_U
til

_A
ss

es
sm

en
t_

B
.m

xd
   

 M
ar

ch
 1

3,
 2

02
0 

  k
pk

!!2

!!2

!

!

!(

!(

6" Mini Storm Sewer
Installed/Owned by Village;
Assessed 70% to 30%
(Resident/Village)
Street Storm Sewer System
Installed and Owned by Village
8" Sanitary Sewer Installed
and Owned by Village
Public Watermain Installed and
Owned by Water Department
Mini Storm Sewer Lateral
Installed by Village and
Assessed 70% to 30%
(Resident/Village);
Resident Owns
Mini Storm Sewer Lateral
Installed by Resident at
Their Cost; Resident Owns
Storm Sewer Lateral
Installed by Village
and Assessed 70% to 30%
(Resident/Village); Resident Owns
Storm Sewer Lateral
Installed by Resident at
Their Cost; Resident Owns
Sanitary Sewer Lateral
Installed by Village and
Assessed 100% to Resident;
Uniform Cost;
Resident Owns
Sanitary Sewer Lateral
Installed by Resident at
Their Cost; Resident Owns
Water Service Lateral, Including Shutoff, 
Installed and Owned by Kimberly
Water Department (PSC Requirement)
Water Service Lateral
Installed and Owned by Resident
(PSC Requirement)
Lot Line
Driveway Apron Assessed 100% Resident
Reconstructed Concrete Street Assessed 
100% to Village and Village Utilities

New Concrete Street Assessed
100% to Resident and 0% to Village
Driveway

Residence

Sidewalk

Grass



 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  March 2, 2026 v5 
 
Special Assessment Policy 
Effective Date: January 19, 2021 Village of Kimberly 
Revised Date:  February 15, 2021 v2   
  August 30, 2021 v3 

February 19, 2024 v4 

Exhibit B: Mini Storm Connection Diagram 



PROPERTY LINE AT
BACK OF WALK

1'

4" SCH. 40 PVC
STORM LATERAL

(INSTALLED BY VILLAGE)
4" (MIN.) SCH. 40 PVC Ø PIPE

(INSTALLED BY HOMEOWNER)

MIN. PITCH = 1/8" PER FOOT
2' - 4'

12"

CHECK
VALVE

1 1/4" RIGID
PUMP LINE

SUMP
PUMP PIT

FOUNDATION

SEE CONNECTION DETAIL

MINI-
STORM

SIDEWALK

CURB &GUTTERROAD

n:
\G

IS
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

K
00

01
_V

ill
ag

e_
Ki

m
be

rly
\M

in
i_

S
to

rm
_C

on
ne

ct
io

n_
D

et
ai

l_
A.

m
xd

   
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

11
, 2

02
1 

   
kp

k

EXHIBIT B

VILLAGE OF KIMBERLY
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

MINI-STORM
CONNECTION DETAIL

CONNECTION DETAIL

1 1/4" RIGID CONDUITFROM SUMP PUMP

FO
UN

DA
TIO

N
WA

LL

TEE
THREADED

CAP

1" AIR GAP
(MINIMUM)

4" (MIN.)
STORM

LATERAL

GROUND

 GENERAL COMMENTS 
1. EXCAVATE MINI-STORM SEWER LATERAL
    FIRST TO VERIFY DEPTH PRIOR TO
    INSTALLING THE LINE TO THE HOME.
2. LATERAL PIPE IS REQUIRED TO BE
    SCH. 40 (RIGID) RATHER THAN FLEXIBLE.
3. UNDER VILLAGE POLICY, ONCE MINI-STORM
    SEWER IS INSTALLED, THE PROPERTY
    OWNER HAS 90 DAYS IN WHICH TO MAKE THE
    CONNECTION TO THE LATEAL STUB.


	03-02-2026 Board Agenda
	02-23-2026 Board Minutes
	02-27-2026 Special Board Minutes
	RBC Half Ton Pickup Truck 2026 SE-26-01
	RBC One Ton Dump_Plow Pickup Truck 2026 SE-26-02
	RBC Infrastructure Standards and Special Assessment Policy



